# TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>ARTICLES</u>	PAGE NUMBERS
ARTICLE I -	RECOGNITION4
ARTICLE II -	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 4-5
ARTICLE III -	BOARD RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 5-6
ARTICLE IV -	PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS
ARTICLE V -	WORKING CONDITIONS
ARTICLE VI -	WORKING HOURS, CASELOADS & ASSIGNMENTS
ARTICLE VII -	VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS 11
ARTICLE VIII -	PROFESSIONAL IMPROVEMENT 12
ARTICLE IX -	PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR 12-13
ARTICLE X -	CIVIC AND ASSOCIATION DAYS
ARTICLE XI -	SPECIALIST EVALUATION AND PROGRESS 14-16
ARTICLE XII -	ILLNESS - DISABILITY AND PERSONAL LEAVE 16-19
ARTICLE XIII -	LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY 19-21
ARTICLE XIV -	REDUCTIONS IN PERSONNEL
ARTICLE XV -	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE XVI -	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
ARTICLE XVII -	PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION 27-31
ARTICLE XVIII -	SUBCONTRACTING
ARTICLE XIX -	DURATION
APPENDIX A -	INSURANCE PROTECTION
APPENDIX B -	SALARY SCHEDULE
APPENDIX C -	MENTOR/MENTEE40
APPENDIX D -	CALENDAR41
APPENDIX E -	GRIEVANCE FORM 42

It is the policy of the Clinton County Regional Educational Service Agency (RESA) that no discriminatory practices based on gender, race, religion, color, age, national origin, disability, height, weight, marital status, sexual orientation, political affiliations and beliefs, or any other status covered by federal, state or local law be allowed in providing instructional opportunities, programs, services, job placement assistance, employment or in policies governing student conduct and attendance. Any person suspecting a discriminatory practice should contact the Director of Special Education, 1013 South US-27, St. Johns, MI 48879, or call 989-224-6831.

#### **AGREEMENT**

# BETWEEN CLINTON COUNTY REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY AND THE INGHAM CLINTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, MEA/NEA

This Agreement commencing **July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2020** by and between the Board of Education of the Regional Educational Service Agency in the County of Clinton, Michigan hereinafter called the "Board," and the Clinton Ingham Education Association, MEA/NEA, hereinafter called the "Association":

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing quality education and specialized services for the children of the constituent school districts in the Clinton County Regional Education Service Agency is their mutual aim and that the effectiveness of such education and service depends upon professional and cooperative planning, implementation with constituent districts, to familiarize constituent school districts with RESA programs and services, through visitations, in-services, workshops and staff presentations, and

WHEREAS, the members of the profession are particularly qualified to assist in formulating policies and programs designed to improve educational standards; and

WHEREAS, the Board functions within the powers and duties delegated by state law and is solely responsible for the adoption of policy, and

WHEREAS, the Board and Association have statutory obligations, pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965 to bargain in good faith with respect to hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment; and

WHEREAS, the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to confirm in this Agreement:

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

# **ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION**

A. The Board recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative, pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965 for:

The Staff positions covered by this Agreement are all State approved certified and licensed professional staff such as: Speech Therapist, School Social Workers, School Psychologist, Homebound and Hospitalized Teacher, Teacher Consultants, Physical Therapists, Occupational Therapists, Transition Coordinator, Certified Vocational Education Teachers and Special Education Classroom Teachers as in the Teachers' Tenure Act. Excluding administrative and supervisory personnel, clerical, secretarial, licensed or certified persons employed as aides, custodial staff and all non-regular part time employees and all other such employees.

B. "Specialists" refer to those members of the bargaining unit who are not covered by the Teachers' Tenure Act (e.g., social workers, psychologists, occupational therapists, some speech therapists).

"Teachers" refer to those members of the bargaining unit (both probationary and tenured) who are covered by the terms of the Teachers' Tenure Act.

"Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) Support Position" refers to a position that assists staff in working with students in this area. This position does not need to be a state approved certified and licensed professional.

"Employees" or "bargaining unit members" refer collectively to all members of the bargaining unit (i.e., including both "Specialists" and "Teachers".)

- C. The Board of Education and/or its designated agents shall hereafter be referred to as "The Board."
- D. Disputes arising concerning the bargaining unit classification of a professional position will be resolved by the Michigan Employment Relations Commission.
- E. The term "Local Association" when used in this Agreement shall refer to the local unit of the Association whose members are employees of the Board.

# ARTICLE II - Employee RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. The Agency and Association agree to abide with Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965 as amended, and to all applicable laws related to employee's rights and responsibilities.

- B. The Association agrees that bargaining unit members shall have the right to join (or refrain from joining) a professional organization, but membership in a professional organization shall not be required as a condition of employment.
- C. The Local Association (and its members) shall have the right to use facilities for meetings upon the approval of the Superintendent or designee. Such use of the buildings shall be without charge during the school days. Requests for evening or weekend use will be subject to the approval of the Superintendent or designee when requested in writing two (2) days in advance. When such evening or weekend use results in added cost to the District, such cost will be billed to and paid by the Association.
- D. Duly authorized representatives of the Association and their respective affiliates shall be permitted to transact official Association business on RESA property with the approval of the Superintendent or designee, provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal operations.
- E. The Local Association shall have the right to use Board designated computers, printers, calculating machines and audio-visual equipment subject to Agency acceptable use policies and user agreements. The use of the copy machine will be permitted provided costs of operations are met by the Association. Arrangements for use of designated equipment shall not interfere with the normal operation of the District.
- F. The Association shall have the right to post notices of activities and matters of Association concern on a bulletin board, which shall be provided in the Agency owned or leased buildings. The Association may use staff mailboxes for communications to employees.
- G. The private lives of employees shall not be the concern of the Board unless their conduct shall adversely affect their relationship with students or the discharge of their professional duties.
- H. The Association shall be responsible to notify the Board, in writing, the elected officers of the Association.
- I. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied without regard to gender, race, religion, color, age, national origin, disability, height, weight, marital status, sexual orientation, political affiliations or beliefts, or any other status covered by federal, state, or local law.

#### ARTICLE III - BOARD RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. The Board, hereby, retains and reserves unto itself, without limitations, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Michigan, and of the United States. The Board's judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be

limited only to the specific and expressed terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and expressed terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and the laws of the State of Michigan and the Constitution and the laws of the United States.

The Board, as in the past, will continue to have such rights, which will include, by way of illustration and not by way of limitation the right to:

- 1. Establish policies, manage and control the Regional Educational Service Agency, its equipment, and its operations and to direct its working forces and affairs.
- 2. Continue its policies and practices of assignment and direction of its personnel, determine the number of personnel and scheduling of all foregoing, and the right to establish, modify or change any work or business or school hours or days.
- 3. Hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of the law, to determine their job descriptions, have the right to modify job descriptions after consultation with employees, to determine their qualifications and the conditions of their continued employment or their dismissal or demotions and to promote, transfer and lay off of employees.
- 4. Adopt reasonable rules and regulations.
- 5. Determine the size of the administrative organization, its functions, authority, amount of supervision and organization, provided that the Board shall not abridge any rights from employees as specifically provided for in the Agreement.
- 6. Determine the number and location or relocation of its facilities.
- 7. Determine the financial policies, including all accounting procedures, and all matters pertaining to public relations.

The foregoing are not to be interpreted as abridging or conflicting with any specific provision in this Agreement.

B. The matters contained in this Agreement and/or the exercise of any such rights of the Board are not subject to further negotiations between the parties during the term of this Agreement, except by written mutual consent.

# **ARTICLE IV - PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS**

A. Upon appropriate written authorization from the employee, the Board shall deduct from the salary of any employee and make appropriate remittance for annuities, credit union, savings bonds, charitable donations, or any other plans or programs approved by the Board.

## **ARTICLE V - WORKING CONDITIONS**

- A. Any employee who feels that existing facilities are inadequate may file a written statement with the Program Director or designee specifically outlining needed improvements. Any employee who feels the facility is hazardous to one's health and safety should notify Program Director or designee as soon as possible. The Program Director or designee and/or the Superintendent agrees to confer with the RESA/Local Superintendents and/or local principals regarding any reported deficiencies that may exist. Such conference should be held within ten (10) working days or as soon as practical. Written copies of a summary of this conference shall be submitted to the employee, the Local Association, and the Local School Superintendent and/or Local School Principal and Program Director or designee.
- B. The parties recognize the importance of the use of professional reference materials by the employees. The Board therefore agrees to provide and maintain agreed upon professional reference materials and the employees agree to use reasonable care in handling and using such materials.
- C. The Board at its discretion agrees to make available reasonable services with the assistance of educational support and administrative personnel.
- D. Except in emergencies, the Board shall not require the employee present to supervise another employee's class(es), without the employee's consent.
- E. Each March the staff will have the opportunity to submit budgetary recommendations to their respective supervisors. These recommendations shall be considered by the Superintendent or designee.
- F. An employee shall not be required to perform any duties that are not of the nature performed by an employee in the employee's position, without the consent of the employee. Employee will assist the administration in on-going efforts to keep job descriptions accurate and updated.
- G. Employees may be permitted to visit other programs in their specialty areas with administrative consent.
- H. The parties recognize the importance of protecting employees from abuse by students and also protecting students from abuse by employees. In this regard, any employee shall report any instance of abuse by or upon a student to his/her

- immediate supervisor. The supervisor will request a meeting with the employee and any other person(s) deemed appropriate to address the substance of the report.
- I. The employee shall be informed and instructed as to emergency measures, which may be necessary on occasion due to the student's disability. Employees shall receive appropriate training and medical consultation regarding medical factors of students, and the employee will be provided appropriate liability coverage.

## ARTICLE VI - WORKING HOURS, CASELOADS AND ASSIGNMENTS

- All employees shall be required to perform professional services, for at least A. 1. 7 hours per day exclusive of lunch period for the total number of days agreed to by The Board and the Association. It is understood that the calendar year and/or the daily schedule may be different for individual employees. Any deviation from the required days and/or hours scheduled for an employee must be with prior approval of the Employee's Supervisor. Generally, employees are required to attend to those matters, which require attention during their scheduled work time, including consultations with parents when scheduled directly with the employees, scheduled staff meetings, Open House or Parent-Teacher Conferences. Normally, staff meetings, IEPTs and other functions will be scheduled during the workday. Scheduling of staff meetings, IEPTs and other functions before or after the normal working day shall be kept to a minimum, and shall require advance notification to the employees. Employees, who by nature of their work, must make parent contacts, attend meetings, or otherwise perform duties that cannot be accomplished during regular school hours, shall be allowed and encouraged to rearrange their daily schedules with administrative approval if the time involved in such duties warrant such a rearrangement. If an employee routinely and consistently has these requirements in nontraditional times, a flex schedule will be encouraged and allowed. If an employee's work requirements regularly require more than the 7 hours per day and attempts by the administration and the employee to flex their hours or adjust their work schedules have been unsuccessful, the district shall compensate specialists for work exceeding 7 hours per day at their hourly rate of pay. It is understood that pre-approval from the Program Director is required.
  - 2. When a meeting is called with less than two weeks notice, specialists will be notified at the local district as specified by the written weekly schedule by email or phone. When a specialist misses a meeting, the specialist shall be responsible for contacting the supervisor in an effort to be apprised of the content of the meeting.
  - 3. a. Those employees who are assigned to a constituent school district shall have the same report in; lunch period; dismissal hours and holiday/spring break periods as the constituent local classroom teachers. These classroom teachers may also have an adjusted total

workday (calendar) based on the calendar in the school district where they are assigned. The District shall compensate specialists for work exceeding 7 hours per day at their hourly rate of pay if their work is regularly scheduled with supervisory approval. A pre-approval process shall be established and if needed a reporting procedure in order to notify the specialist, superintendent or designee, and the business office. No specialist shall be required to work over eight (8) hours per day, unless they are compensated at 1.5 pay after forty (40) hours worked in a week. Under certain circumstances, the administration and the specialist may mutually agree to flex the specialist's hours/days.

- b. If a specialist is assigned to one or more than one constituent school district, the Administration will establish at the beginning of the school year assigned holiday/spring break periods for the school year, in consideration of the following items; assessment of caseloads by district, coordination of constituent district calendars, compliance with the required instructional hours and maintaining the same number of consecutive working days off as the CCRESA calendar for holiday and spring break periods. CCRESA shall notify the applicable Districts.
- 4. The "tentative schedule" of the working day for employees associated with classroom programs not included in three (3) above, will be set by the administration prior to the beginning of each school year.
- 5. Teachers assigned to the Clinton County Education Center may have a 30-minute duty-free lunch period. If lunch period is not duty-free, said 30 minutes will apply towards the 7 hours of contact with students, if approved by his/her supervisor.
- 6. Teachers assigned to the Clinton County Education Center shall have a specific planning period daily determined at the beginning of the school year by his/her supervisor.
- 7. The schedule for the Clinton County Education Center will include four (4) full days (1.5 of these four (4) days shall be used for appropriate professional development) for the purpose of collaborative planning, consultation interstaff regarding specific students, interagency consultations, planning IEPTs, holding IEPTs, home visits and visiting other programs. Such half-days and such activities will be jointly planned with the administration. One (1) half-day will be reserved for CPR training. The scheduling of the half-days and activities must be approved by the administration. Necessary deviation will be worked out jointly by the staff and the administrator.

- 8. Specialists shall have no less than 3 ¼ hours each week for planning and records, such planning time determined at the beginning of each school year by the Program Director or supervisor.
- B. Caseloads for specialists and class size for the teachers shall not exceed the maximum recommendations as promulgated by the State Department of Education and MDE waiver approved. The Administration shall consult with those specialists or teachers involved in the specific situation and shall provide notice to the Association upon application for a waiver. Such notice shall include a copy of the waiver request that is presented to the State Department:
  - 1. A deviation request is filed by the program director and approved by the State Department of Education.
- C. Each employee shall be responsible for maintaining the proper records of services rendered, including time spent in constituent school districts and such other permanent reports as are required by the Board of Education.
- D. No specialist shall be assigned outside the employee's certification, license, State approval (as applicable) or outside the Specialist's discipline, except in emergency situations.
- E. When a change in assignment is made, specialists affected will be informed of the reasons for making the change. All specialists shall be given written notice of their tentative assignments for the forthcoming year no later than the end of the current year.
- F. The employee shall be required to comply with the scheduling and informing policies as established by the Program Director or designee. Designated office staff shall be kept informed of each employee's schedule during their workweek.
- G. Each employee who is a classroom teacher or itinerant specialist must report illnesses to the CCRESA designated person not later than one (1) hour prior to their first assignment.
- H. For June 2017, summer program employment opportunities shall be posted no later than April 1, 2017. Individuals who are available for summer programs during June 2017 shall inform the Program Director in writing no later than April 15. Employment for June 2017 summer programs shall not be obligatory. Starting in August 2017, employees whose job duties are associated with a Balanced Calendar for 12 month programs (*Early On*, ECSE, Educatin Center) will have a Balanced Calendar for 12 months not to exceed the number of state mandated student days (presently 180) and not to exceed the number of work days (presently 186).
- I. There will be no department heads.

J. Any employee with a core assignment such as Speech Therapist, Occupational Therapist or any other assignment shall be kept on the seniority list in their original assigned area.

# **ARTICLE VII - VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS**

# A. Definitions:

Vacancy: A specialist's bargaining unit position which is open due to the death, retirement, resignation, transfer, or discharge of a specialist member (unless such position will be discontinued) or a new specialist within the bargaining unit.

*Transfer:* A change of assignment for a specialist.

- B. Requests by specialists for a change in assignment shall be made in writing by March 15 of each school year. The request shall set forth the reasons for the transfer and the specialist's area of State approval certification or licensure, and qualifications. The request shall be filed with the Superintendent.
- C. A change of specialist's assignment will only be made during the school year to prevent undue disruption of the instructional program. In the event that a change of assignment becomes necessary during the school year, qualified specialists will be informed of the needs of the agency. Volunteers will be requested. If no qualified specialist volunteers, a change of assignment will be based upon the following: the specialist with qualifications, certification, licensure, and/or State approval, with final determination by the Superintendent.
- D. When a specialist vacancy occurs, a notice containing the job description and State approved qualifications will be posted on the bulletin board in the Administration Offices. Only specialists who are State approved, certified, licensed, qualified and experienced will receive a copy of the notice in the mailbox via U.S. mail or institutional email. This mailing or email will include any specialist on leave of absence or layoff. Vacancies shall not be filled until after such vacancy has been posted for a period of two (2) weeks from the date of the postmark or email date.
- E. In filling specialist vacancies within the bargaining unit, only present specialists in the CCRESA will be given preference.
- F. The foregoing shall not be construed in such a way as to prohibit the Board of Education and the Clinton County Regional Educational Service Agency from being an Equal Opportunity Employer.
- G. The Board shall consider any qualified employee for an administrative vacancy. The decision of the Board in filling vacancies shall be final.

#### ARTICLE VIII - PROFESSIONAL IMPROVEMENT

- A. An employee desiring to attend a professional development activity must submit a request in writing at least one week in advance and receive prior approval of the Program Director or designee.
- B. The employee may be requested to submit a written report within one (1) week of attendance at such meeting.
- C. Professional development activity fees that exceed twenty-five dollars (\$25) may be prepaid by the CCRESA, if requested by employee. Employees shall submit a detailed estimate of expenses to the Program Director or designee normally two (2) weeks in advance.
- D. A statement of actual costs, accompanied by receipts, shall be submitted with the next expense voucher so that any difference between the estimated cost advance and actual expenditure can be corrected.
- E. The parties encourage professional improvement and conference attendance by employees in the area of their specialization. The Board of Education may endorse, after consideration of the merits in each individual case, employee participation in certain educational projects, conference, study and other outside activities, which will benefit the employee and the Agency. Determination by the Board that such participation would be in the best interests of the Agency shall not be considered a precedent.
- F. The Board shall limit its financial obligation to three hundred fifty dollars (\$350) for professional development activities per employee per year. If the employee is requested to attend a professional development activity, all expenses will be paid. Up to \$50 shall be applied to dues in professional organizations related to an employee's discipline.
- G. Employees who are involved in in-service activities within the RESA shall be allowed release time from normal professional duties to plan and carry out inservice activities.

#### ARTICLE IX - PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR

- A. Employees are expected to comply with the rules, regulations and directions of the Board of Education and administrative staff. It is expressly understood that such rules, regulations and directions shall not abrogate the expressed provisions of this Agreement.
- B. For employees, abuses of sick leave or other leaves of absence, chronic tardiness or absence, deficiencies in professional performance or unethical conduct will result in disciplinary action.

- C. For specialists, the Board of Education and administration (adhere) to the concept of progressive discipline; however, it is expressly understood that in some infractions, termination of employment may be warranted without progressive discipline.
- D. Specialists who have completed their probationary period of three (3) years shall not be disciplined, reprimanded or reduced in compensation without just cause. All information forming the basis of disciplinary action will be made available to the involved parties.
- E. The employee is responsible for having earned all certificates, endorsements, licenses and/or State approvals required by law and Michigan Department of Education regulation to serve in the position assigned. Further, it is the employee's responsibility to file such certificates, endorsements, licenses, and/or approvals with the Board. 'Certified', for the purposes of this Agreement, shall also include position specifications issued by governmental agencies or authorities in connection with receipt of full categorical, membership or grant funding for a particular program operated by the Board.

The employee shall provide written notice to the Board and Association of any change to his/her certificates, endorsements, licenses or approvals after the original filing of same with the Board. This shall include notice of any additional endorsements, certificates, renewals, approvals, as well as expirations, revocations and any limitations thereon. The employee shall further notify the Board and the Association in writing, in the event that he/she petitions the State Board of Education or any other regulatory authority for nullification or limitation of his/her certificate, license, approval or endorsement."

## ARTICLE X -CIVIC AND ASSOCIATION DAYS

- A. An employee called for jury duty during school hours or who is subpoenaed to testify during school hours in any judicial or administrative matter, or who shall be asked to testify in any arbitration or fact finding, shall be paid their full salary for such time spent on jury duty or giving testimony. Legal duty compensation shall become the property of the Board.
- B. At the beginning of every school year, the Association shall be credited with four (4) days, such use to be at the discretion of the Association. Such days may accumulate up to eight (8) days if any are unused during any given year. The Association agrees to notify the Superintendent no less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance, providing there is no conflict, and the Association agrees to pay for necessary substitute at the prevailing substitute rate of pay.

#### ARTICLE XI -SPECIALIST EVALUATION AND PROGRESS

This provision only applies to specialists and does not apply to teachers.

Formal evaluations shall be conducted by the specialist's immediate supervisor in accordance to state guidelines.

- A. The evaluation of the performance of each specialist is the responsibility of the administration. The administrator will meet with the specialist to discuss criteria for the evaluation prior to the evaluation. All monitoring or observations of the work of a specialist shall be conducted openly and with the full knowledge of the specialist. Specialists shall be informed of which week their formal evaluation observation will occur. In the event that the evaluation of a non-probationary specialist is not completed, the specialist may assume that his/her performance is satisfactory.
- B. It is the intent of the Ingham-Clinton education Association, MEA/NEA and the Clinton County Regional Education Service Agency Board of education/Administration to fully comply with all requirements established by state law and the Michigan Department of Education, including but not limited to the Race to The Top requirements set forth in MCL 380.1279. The parties agree to establish a committee to work collaboratively on full compliance and implementation.
- C. The performance of all specialists will be evaluated in writing in accordance with the following:
  - 1. Probationary specialists will be evaluated in writing at least once each year.
  - 2. For contractual purposes, this is a three-year interval.
  - 3. Non-probationary specialists will be evaluated at least once every three (3) years.
- D. When a specialist's evaluation includes areas, which are designated Ineffective, the evaluator shall provide the specialist with observable evidence to substantiate the Ineffective areas and make written recommendations or suggestions as to how the specialist's performance may be corrected.
  - 1. If a probationary specialist receives an overall evaluation rating of "Ineffective", "Ineffective", their IDP will be reviewed and, if necessary, amended with the objective of performance remediation. The probationary specialist shall be jointly consulted in any amendment or modification of the IDP and shall sign a statement attesting to that involvement and acknowledging receipt of the modified IDP. The evaluating administrator and probationary specialist shall be jointly responsible for implementing the IDP. The IDP shall specify a time interval for desired performance remediation, not to exceed one semester.

2. If a non-probationary specialist receives an overall rating of "Ineffective", the specialist shall be placed on an Individualized Development Plan (IDP) with the objective of performance remediation. The non-probationary specialist shall be consulted in the formulation of the IDP and shall sign a statement on the IDP attesting to that involvement and acknowledging receipt of the IDP.

The IDP will contain performance objectives, suggestions for improvement and a designation of the forms of assistance to be provided by the administration or other sources. The evaluating administrator and non-probationary specialist shall be jointly responsible for implementing the IDP. The IDP shall specify a time interval for desired performance remediation, not to exceed one (1) school year.

- E. The content of the evaluation of the specialist is not subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures.
- F. Should a probationary specialist be denied a contract for the ensuing year, the specialist shall receive written notice no later than May 15.
- G. Each employee shall have the right upon request to review the contents of their own personnel file, in accordance with the provisions of the Bullard-Plawecki Employee Right to Know Act, Act 397 of 1978. A representative of the Association may, at the employee's request, accompany the employee in this review. The employee may submit a written notation regarding any material and the same shall be attached to the file copy of the material in question.
- H. If an employee is asked to sign material placed in their file, such signature shall be understood to indicate their awareness of the material, but in no instance shall said signature be interpreted to mean agreement with the content of the material, unless the material is an agreement in and of itself.

No material, which will be used for disciplinary or evaluative purposes, shall be placed in the specialist's personnel file without knowledge of the specialist. A copy of any such material shall be given to the specialist who shall have the right to attach written comments.

- I. In the event a specialist is given an evaluation rating of Ineffective, the specialist, upon request, shall be evaluated by another supervisory employee of the District. Prior to completion of the second evaluation, written statements of expected conduct or written directives related to the original evaluation will not be impeded by this request.
- J. The Board, in recognition of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), agrees that all personnel file materials shall not be shown or released to the third parties absent written consent of the employee or as required or permitted by law. Furthermore,

the employer agrees that any written documentation pertaining to discipline of the specialist, the written documentation (including directive, warning, reprimand, suspension or discharge) will be entered into the specialist's personnel file within thirty (30) calendar days after its composition. Any materials not entered into the file within this time period shall be without effect.

# ARTICLE XII -ILLNESS - DISABILITY AND PERSONAL LEAVE

A. At the beginning of each school year each employee shall be credited with twelve (12) days of leave, 8 sick and 4 personal, the unused portion of which shall accumulate from year to year to one hundred and twelve (112) days. These days will be prorated to employees who do not work a full school year. For June through August, 2016 only, one (1) additional personal day will be given to employees working summer employment, for a full summer fifty school day calendar. When the maximum numbers of leave days (112) have been accumulated, the employees will be compensated on an annual basis for unused days (maximum 10 days per year) at the current daily rate for a substitute teacher. Such payment shall be made on the First payroll following the determination of sick day allotment and accumulation.

Leave days may be taken by an employee for the following reasons and subject to the following conditions:

1. <u>Illness</u> – An employee and tenured specialist may use all or any portion of his/her leaves to recover from his/her own illness. An employee may be permitted to use UP TO SIXTY (60) sick leave days during a serious illness of his/her immediate family. Immediate family shall be defined as: spouse, children, stepchildren, parents, in-laws, brothers, sisters, grandparents, legal dependants, and family members of the immediate household, causing grave concern to the employee. This limit of sixty (60) days may be increased upon joint approval of the Association and the superintendent.

# 2. <u>Temporary Disability</u> –

- a. Employees anticipating the possible usage of leave for purposes of temporary disability shall notify the Superintendent, when possible, at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed commencement of such leave.
- b. Employees may be required to furnish medical certification of continued ability to perform regular duties upon request of the Board.
- c. To be eligible to receive temporary disability payments under this Article, the employee must remain at work until no longer able to perform the essential functions of his/her position (with or without reasonable accommodation for eligible disabilities) and must return

to service as soon as physically able to resume successful performance of his/her essential job functions, (with or without reasonable accommodation for eligible disabilities.) Medical verification may be required in either instance.

- d. For purposes of the Family and Medical Leave Act (P.L. 103-3) sick leave allowed and which is taken under this article shall be charged against the employee's leave entitlement under the Family and Medical Leave Act, at the election of either the Board or the employee. The employee may choose to keep up to five (5) paid sick days in their accrued bank while on a leave under FMLA. This shall apply to:
  - 1. Sick leave which is utilized to care for a family member (child, spouse, or parent) with a serious health condition, including where an employee must make arrangements for necessary medical and/or nursing care.
  - 2. Sick leave, which is utilized due to a serious health condition, which renders the employee unable to perform the functions of his/her job.
- 3. Bereavement Leave Days The employee will be granted up to (6) days per year and such days shall not be deducted from accrued sick or personal days nor shall any deduction be made from the employee's salary. Additional days will be at the discretion of the Superintendent. Bereavement leave days shall include the death of: spouse or significant other, child, parent, sister, brother, grandparents, grandchildren, aunt, uncle, first cousin, niece, nephew, or close friend or any of the preceding named individuals on an inlaw or step-basis.
- 4. <u>Personal Leave Days</u> Four (4) personal leave days that may be used for any reason important to the employee may be taken each year. The personal business days wherein granted shall be deducted from the sick leave and will not accumulate from year to year, but if not used, accumulates as sick leave.
- B. Personal leave days may be granted immediately before or after a holiday or recess as determined by the Superintendent. Leaves before or after a holiday or
  - recess without pay may be granted by the Superintendent or Program Director if arrangements are made well in advance, two (2) weeks of the time to be absent.
- C. The Board shall furnish each employee with a written statement at the beginning of each school year setting forth their total sick leave credit.
- D. An employee who is unable to provide services because of personal illness or temporary or long term disability and who has exhausted all sick leave available may be granted a leave of absence without pay for the duration of such illness or

- disability up to one year. The leave may be renewed each year upon written request by an employee consistent with the provision of Article XIII.
- E. In cases where the Board has reasonable concern over abuse of sick leave, temporary disability, and personal business leave days, verification of use may be required by the Board at the Board's expense.
- F. An employee may purchase District health insurance benefits for up to one year while on leave of absence. CCRESA will remit the health insurance premiums to the carrier on the employee's behalf in order to continue the enrollment of the employee in the health insurance program. For the purposes of Family Medical Leave Act, time allowed is inclusive within the one year.
- G. An employee who is absent because of an injury or diseases under the workers' disability compensation act shall make a written election of one of the following options at the time he/she becomes eligible for workers' compensation benefits:
  - 1. The employee may utilize his/her accumulated sick leave for each day absent provided that he/she reimburses the District for the amount of workers' compensation benefits received for the corresponding pay period. Employee shall only be eligible to access this alternative if they have sufficient sick leave accumulation.
  - 2. The employee may elect to receive workers' compensation benefits only.
  - 3. The employee may elect to receive the difference between his/her regular salary and the amount received as workers' compensation benefits. Such difference in salary shall be computed on a percentage basis, and this percentage shall be deducted from the employee's sick leave accumulation. (For example: if workers' compensation pays sixty percent (60%) of full pay, sick leave will only pay forty percent (40%) and the sick leave accumulation shall be charged .4 of a day for each day so used). Employee shall only be eligible to access this alternative if they have sufficient sick leave accumulation.
- H. There is established a Sick Leave Bank to be administered jointly by a committee of four (4) members two (2) members appointed by the Association and two (2) members appointed by the Superintendent. The joint committee will develop criteria for the use of the sick leave bank and be responsible for reviewing and approving requests for sick leave withdrawal from the bank.
  - Employees may donate two (2) days per year to a sick bank that shall carry a limit of one hundred (100) days. The bank will be: 1) restricted to employees who contribute to the bank, 2) reimbursed on a one for one basis by employees who borrow from the bank.

- I. Employees may be allowed days without pay. These days may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- J. When an employee is absent, as a result of physical abuse by a student, up to two (2) days may be granted per incident when approved by the immediate supervisor. Additional days beyond the two (2) granted and approved will be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick time.

Upon qualification for long term disability and/or workers' compensation benefits as a result of physical abuse by a student, the Board agrees to continue to remit premium payments, on behalf of the employee, for health insurance benefits for up to one year following the qualification of LTD and/or Workers' compensation.

# ARTICLE XIII - LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

- A. Leaves of absence up to a maximum of one (1) year may be granted upon application for the following purposes:
  - 1. Advanced study related to the employee's field to be called a sabbatical.
  - 2. Study to meet eligibility requirements for a degree, State approval certification or licensure, other than that held by the employee.
  - 3. To serve as an officer within the profession.
  - 4. To campaign for a political office or to serve in a political office.
  - 5. Family care leave, as defined by the FMLA, to care for a family member of the employee with a serious health condition.
  - 6. Adoption or foster care placement.

The leaves identified in subsections (5) and (6) of this section shall be granted to an eligible specialist and tenured specialist employee to the extent required by the family and medical leave act.

An unpaid leave of absence taken for the purpose of caring for a child with a serious health condition or because of the birth of a child (and in order to care for that child) or due to placement for adoption or foster care, as defined by the Family and Medical Leave Act, shall be taken concurrently with the foregoing leave provisions to the extent of the employee's eligibility under the Family and Medical Leave Act.

Leave taken under this section in connection with the birth of a child or due to placement for adoption or foster care must be concluded at the end of the twelve (12) month period beginning on the date of birth or placement, as is applicable.

7. The employee shall have the option to remit medical benefit plan costs to the CCRESA for the remainder of the specialist's leave of absence to continue their health care benefits.

# B. Family and Medical Leave Act

This is an addition to the existing leave of absence policy and implements requirements of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA). This policy is not all-inclusive. It highlights the provisions of the FMLA and implementation procedures. If there is any inconsistency between this policy and FMLA or the implementation procedures, FMLA and it's regulations will control.

# Family and Medical Leave Act

- 1. Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act as amended, an employee with more than one (1) year of experience and 1,250 hours over the previous twelve (12) month period, is eligible for one or more of the FMLA Benefits.
- 2. An employee must ordinarily provide thirty (30) days advance notice when the leave is "foreseeable". Leave requests must be in writing where practical and must set forth the reasons, anticipated duration, and anticipated start of the leave with medical certification attached. Medical treatment must be scheduled so as to minimize loss of work time.
- 3. Upon return from such leave, the employee shall be placed in his/her original or an equivalent position. The Board and the employee agree to cooperate in scheduling return from leave pursuant to the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act at a time which minimizes disruption to the continuity of educational programming and service delivery and consistent with the provisions of the act and its regulations.
- 4. The Board of Education will continue medical benefit plan cost contributions, to the extent specified in Appendix A, for eligible employees, for health care benefits up to twelve (12) weeks for an employee who has been granted a leave for his/her own illness, to care for a seriously ill family member, or for the birth of adoption of a child pursuant to the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act. If the employee voluntarily terminates employment, the Board shall have the right to recover all medical benefit plan cost contributions made by the Board during the unpaid leave interval. These amounts may permissibly be deducted from any wage or other payments due the employee, with any deficiency to be remitted by the employee to the board within ninety (90) days of demand.
- 5. The employee shall first use accrued paid leave (ex. Personal days, sick leave, vacation days). The specialist may keep up to five (5) paid leave days in their accrual balance while on leave designated as FMLA. The remainder

of any leave time will be unpaid. Paid and unpaid leave pursuant to the FMLA will be counted against the employee's FMLA entitlement.

- 6. Upon request, the employee shall present a clearance certificate signed by a physician prior to returning to work. The superintendent shall also have the right to have the employee examined by a physician of the District's selection at District expense.
- C. Unless expressly provided herein, the Board shall have no obligation to continue contribution of medical benefits plan costs or premiums or to grant increment advancement for any employee who is on a leave of absence.

The Board of Education will continue medical benefit plan costs and premium payments for health care benefits (medical, dental, vision) up to twelve (12) weeks for an employee on an unpaid leave of absence for serious personal illness or disability as otherwise under the Family and Medical Leave Act. The employee may continue to purchase health benefits for the remainder of the leave by remitting payments to the CCRESA to cover the cost of said health benefits.

If the employee fails to return from leave at its expiration (except in the event of the continuance, onset or recurrence of a serious health condition of the employee's family member or other circumstances beyond the employee's control) the Board shall have the right to recover all medical benefit costs and premium payments made during the unpaid leave interval. These amounts may be deducted from any wage or other payments due the employee with any deficiency to be remitted by the employee to the Board within five (5) calendar days of demand.

D. No employee on leave under this Article may engage in any employment for another public or private educational institution without prior expressed written consent of the Board.

## **ARTICLE XIV - REDUCTIONS IN PERSONNEL**

- A. Specialists in positions regulated by the Tenure Act shall be subject to the layoff and recall provisions of board policy and procedures, which shall not be subject to grievance procedures.
- B. If for any reason the Board anticipates a reduction in staff for the next school year, each specialist to be laid off shall receive no less than sixty (60) calendar day's written notice.

If during the course of the current school year a loss of students or executive order from the Governor will result in a reduction in staff prior to January 1, said specialist shall receive no less than sixty (60) calendar days written notice, if a reduction in staff is necessary after January 1, said specialist shall receive no less than thirty (30) calendar days written notice.

- C. In the event of a recall, specialists shall be recalled in inverse order of layoff for a position opening for which they are State approved, certified, licensed and qualified. Such specialist shall retain accumulated sick days earned before the layoff. Recall notices shall be mailed certified, return receipt requested. A three (3) year period of recall eligibility for non-probationary specialists shall be observed. Probationary specialists shall lose recall rights if they are not recalled eighteen (18) months following the date of layoff. Recall of probationary specialists shall be at the discretion of the Board and not subject to the grievance procedure.
- D. If a specialist takes another position in another school district or in other employment and receives a notice of recall, the specialist must either:
  - 1. Return to the District within 30 calendar days, or
  - 2. Submit a certified letter to the District verifying the specialist is under a conflicting employment contract with another Michigan K-12 or RESA with a statement of intent to return at the beginning of the next school year.

If these conditions are not met, the specialist forfeits his/her rights to any future recall.

- E. Not later than November 1 of each year, the Board will publish a seniority list and deliver same to the Association. The Association will have not more than thirty (30) calendar days to verify the accuracy of said published list. Any discrepancies will be resolved by the Association and the Administration. If the Association fails to verify the published seniority list within the thirty (30) calendar days, the list will be the official seniority list.
- F. If two or more employees have the same date of hire and the same years of service, those employees shall be ranked in order by the highest four digit number determined by the last four digits of their respective social security numbers, the higher numbers being given the higher seniority rank.
- G. Current administrators holding bargaining unit seniority shall have their seniority frozen until they return to the bargaining unit.

Subsequent to the date of this Agreement, bargaining unit members who transfer out of the unit into an administrative position within the District shall have their accrued seniority frozen for up to three (3) years. If they return within the three-year period, they shall have their seniority begin accruing again upon their return to the unit. Bargaining unit members who do not return within the three (3) year period shall lose their seniority. Salary and benefit accruals shall not continue for the time that a bargaining unit member spends as an administrator.

- H. 1. When the Board determines a reduction in personnel is necessary, reductions shall be made by layoff of the least senior specialist provided the more senior specialists are certified, licensed and qualified for placement in the available positions.
  - 2. If reductions in the educational program(s) and/or personnel are deemed necessary, the District Board shall notify the Association of its intent to layoff specialists prior to the implementation of layoff(s) and/or program reductions.

#### **ARTICLE XV - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

- A. A grievance shall be an alleged violation of the express terms of this contract. It is expressly understood that the grievance procedure shall not apply to those areas in which the Tenure Act prescribes a procedure or authorizes a remedy (discharge and/or demotion), or to initial placement on the salary schedule.
- B. The term "days" as used herein shall mean working days in which school is in session.
- C. Written grievances as required herein shall contain the following:
  - 1. It shall be signed by the grievant or grievants;
  - 2. It shall be specific;
  - 3. It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation;
  - 4. It shall cite the section or subsection of this contract alleged to have been violated;
  - 5. It shall contain the date of the alleged violation;
  - 6. It shall specify the relief requested;
  - 7. It shall be submitted on the grievance form (Appendix E).

Any written grievance not substantially in accordance with the above requirements may be rejected as improper. Such a rejection shall not extend the limitations hereinafter set forth.

D. <u>Level One</u> - Specialists believing themselves wronged by an alleged violation of the expressed provisions of this contract shall within five (5) days of its alleged occurrence orally discuss the grievance with his immediate supervisor in an attempt to resolve same.

If no resolution is obtained within three (3) days of the discussion, the specialist shall reduce the grievance to writing and proceed within five (5) days of said discussion to Level Two.

<u>Level Two</u> - A copy of the written grievance shall be filed with the Superintendent or his/her designated agent as specified in Level One with the endorsement thereon of the approval or disapproval of the Association. Within five (5) days of receipt of the grievance, the Superintendent or his/her designated agent shall arrange a meeting with the grievant and/or the designated Association representative at the option of the grievant to discuss the grievance. Within five (5) days of the discussion the Superintendent or his/her designated agent shall render his/her decision in writing, transmitting a copy of the same to the grievant, the Association Secretary, the immediate supervisor, and place a copy of same in a permanent file in his/her office.

If no decision is rendered within five (5) days of the discussion, or the decision is unsatisfactory to the grievant and the Association, the grievant may appeal same to the Board of Education by filing a written grievance along with the decision of the Superintendent with the officer of the Board in charge of drawing up the agenda for the Board's meeting not less than five (5) days prior to the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

<u>Level Three</u> - Upon proper application as specified in Level Two, the Board or an Ad Hoc Committee established by the Board shall allow the employee or his/her Association representative an opportunity to be heard under the Open Meetings Act for which the grievance was scheduled if requested, or if not requested, give such other consideration as it shall deem appropriate. Within one calendar month from the hearing of the grievance, the Board shall render its decision in writing. The Board may hold future hearings therein, may designate one or more of its members to hold future hearings therein or otherwise investigate the grievance.

A copy of the written decision of the Board shall be forwarded to the Superintendent for permanent filing, the immediate supervisor of the grievant, the grievant, and the President of the Association.

<u>Level Four</u> - Individual Employees shall not have the right to process a grievance at Level Four.

The following matters shall not be arbitrable:

The termination of services of or failure to re-employ any specialist.

Any matter involving specialist evaluation.

1. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, it may, within ten (10) days after the decision of the Board,

refer the matter for arbitration to the American Arbitration Association, in writing, and request the appointment of an arbitrator to hear the grievance. If the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, he/she shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules.

- 2. Neither party may raise a new defense or ground at Level Four not previously raised or disclosed at other written levels. Each party shall submit to the other party not less than three (3) days prior to the hearing, pre-hearing statement alleging facts, grounds and defense which will be proven at the hearing and hold a conference at that time in an attempt to settle the grievance.
- 3. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding employees, the Board and the Association: subject to the right of the Board or the Association to judicial review. All arbitration proceedings are subject to the procedures and requirements contained in the Michgian Uniform Arbitration Act, MCL 621.1681 et seq.
- 4. Powers of the arbitrator are subject to the following limitations:
  - a. He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.
  - b. He/she shall have no power to establish salary scales or to change any salary schedule.
  - c. He/she shall have no power to interpret state or federal law.
  - d. He/she shall not hear any grievance previously barred from the scope of the grievance procedure.
- 5. After a case on which the arbitrator is empowered to rule hereunder has been referred to him/her, it may not be withdrawn by either party except by mutual consent.
- 6. If either party disputes the procedural arbitrability of any grievance under the terms of this Agreement, the arbitrator shall rule upon arbitrability prior to hearing the case on the merits. In the event that a case is appealed to the arbitrator on which he/she has no power to rule, it shall be referred back to the parties without decision or recommendation on its merits.
- 7. More than one grievance may not be considered by the arbitrator at the same time except upon expressed written mutual consent and then only if they are of similar nature.

- 8. The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the parties except each party shall assume its own cost for representation including any expense of witnesses.
- E. Should an employee fail to institute a grievance within the time limits specified, the grievance will not be processed. Should an employee fail to appeal a decision within the limits specified, or leave the employ of the Board, (except a claim involving a remedy directly benefiting the Grievant regardless of his/her employment), all further proceedings on a previously instituted grievance shall be barred. Time limits specified herein may be extended upon mutual consent.
- F. The Association shall have no right to initiate a grievance involving the right of an employee or group of employees without his/her or their express approval in writing.
- G. All preparation, filing, presentation or consideration of grievances shall be held at a time other than when an Employee or a participating Association representative are to be at their assigned duty stations.
- H. Where no monetary loss has been caused by the action of the Board complained of, the Board shall be under no obligation to make monetary adjustments and the arbitrator shall have no power to order one.
- I. Arbitration awards or grievance settlements will not be made retroactive beyond the date of the occurrence or non-occurrence of the event upon which the grievance is based. In no event, however, shall the settlement be earlier than thirty (30) days prior to the date of which the grievance is filed.

## **ARTICLE XVI - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

- A. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations or practices of the Board with respect to mandatory subjects of bargaining which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with the terms contained in any individual's contract issued to bargaining unit members. All future individual contracts issued to bargaining unit members shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement pertaining to mandatory subjects of bargaining.
- B. The agreement shall be posted on the CCRESA Website and upon rquest shall make individual copies available.
- C. If any provision of this Agreement, or any application thereof to any bargaining unit member shall become unlawful due to legislative enactment or shall be found contrary to law by an unappealed and final order of a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision(s) or application(s) shall be deemed null and void except to the extent permitted by law, but all remaining provisions or applications of this Agreement shall otherwise continue in full force and effect.

- D. The Association shall not engage in a strike against the employer during the duration of this contract.
- E. In the event that this Agency shall be combined with one or more intermediate school districts, the Board will strive to assure continued employment of its specialists in such consolidated district. In the event any program or service of the Agency is assumed by a local school district, Section 1766 of the School Code, requires constituent districts to "employ first an employee of the intermediate school district."
- F. If the Board assumes any new ongoing programs, the hours, wages, working conditions, and other relevant issues concerning the employees involved, shall be subject to negotiations. Such negotiations shall be conducted with a team appointed by the Association.
- G. In the event that severe weather occurs and the Superintendent determines that the Clinton County Educational Center shall not operate, then such notification will be made via local radio stations or another electronic means: however,
  - 1. If a local school in which an employee serves is open and the specialist is scheduled for that school on that day, then the employee shall report for work
  - 2. If a local school in which an employee serves is closed by severe weather and the employee is scheduled for that school on that day, the employee will not be expected to report for work.
  - 3. Leave day accumulation accounts will not be charged for any employee who was scheduled to use a leave day on any day when school has been canceled, and no substitute cost has been incurred.
  - 4. Employees are obligated to follow the make-up schedule of lost school days of instruction or services to local school districts.
- H. Inclusion of an Emergency Manager Clause is required by Section 15(7) of PERA. An emergency manager appointed under the Local Financail Stability and Chioice Act is authorized to reject, modify or terminate this Agreement as provided in the Local Financial Stability and Choice Act, 2012 Public Act 436.

#### ARTICLE XVII - PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

- A. Basic salaries of employees covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix B which is attached hereto and incorporated in this Agreement. Such salary schedules shall remain in effect during the designated periods.
- B. New employees shall be placed on the degree schedule based solely upon educational credentials earned in the field of specialization or educationally

related to the services provided by the agency. The superintendent has the discretion to determine 1) if credits are related to the field of specialization or to the area of services and 2) how individuals participating in unique educational programs, such as those that offer a Bachelor's degree and a Master's degree simultaneously, are classified on the degree schedule. Employees hired before the 2017-2018 school year will not be adversely impacted by clarifications to the degree schedule adopted on July 1, 2017.

- C. Employees accumulating enough credit hours to advance on the degree schedule shall receive an adjustment in pay. The adjustment in pay shall be calculated effective the date the employee presents proof of credits earned to their immediate supervisor. Educational credits for such adjustment must be:
  - 1. Graduate semester hours or their quarterly equivalent;
  - 2. In the field of specialization, or educationally related to the services provided by CCRESA;
  - 3. Listed on an official transcript(s) of a university or college and the credits of "C" or better, or if no grade is given "passed."
  - 4. The degree schedule categories are defined as follows:
    - a. ASD The individual is employed in the position of ASD Team Assistant.
    - b. Career/Tech Ed Annually authorized vocational education teachers shall be paid on the annually authorized vocational education column on Appendix B. If an employee possesses a full vocational authorization certificate valid for the course(s) they are teaching, they will be paid according to the regular salary schedule.
    - c. BA To qualify for a BA, an employee must present evidence of having attained a Bachelor's degree from a four-year accredited college or university.
    - d. BA+20 To qualify for BA+20, an employee must present evidence of having completed a minimum of 20 graduate-level credits from an accredited four-year college or university following the attainment of a Bachelor's Degree.
    - e. MA To qualify for MA, an employee must present evidence of a Master's degree requiring at least 30 graduate-level credits.
    - f. MA+15 To qualify for MA+15, an employee must present evidence of a Master's degree requiring at least 30 graduate-level credit hours plus sufficient graduate-level credit hours after completing the Master's degree to attain a total of 45 graduate-level credits OR the

- employee must present evidence of a 45 graduate credit or higher Master's degree.
- g. MA+30 To qualify for MA+30, an employee must present evidence of a Master's degree requiring at least 30 graduate-level credit hours plus sufficient graduate-level credit hours after completing the Master's degree to attain a total of 60 graduate-level credits OR the employee must present evidence of a 60 graduate credit or higher Master's degree.
- D. New employees may be given credit on the salary schedule set forth in Appendix B for years of experience in other school districts and/or experience related to the position of employment up to a maximum of five (5) years. Additional years of experience may be granted upon the Superintendent's recommendation and approval of the Board.
- E. Salaries will be paid semi-monthly beginning in August and shall be paid in twenty-four (24) equal installments unless, prior to August 1, written request is made for twenty (20) equal payments. The above salary payment arrangement is subject to approval and processing through the payroll-processing center.
- F. The salary schedule is based upon the school calendar as determined jointly by Administration and Association and the normal professional responsibility and duties as defined in this Agreement.
- G. When an employee has a minimum of six (6) consecutive years with CCRESA and has attained the maximum step in his/her classification and has remained at the maximum step for (1) contract year, he/she will receive the additional longevity value as stated in Appendix B.
- H. Fringe benefits shall be provided as set forth in Appendix A.
- I. Travel Employees shall be reimbursed for approved business-related travel expenses **in alignment with IRS guidelines** and subject to maximum amounts for meals and lodging. Reimbursement may include mileage reimbursement when employees are required to furnish their own transportation for travel necessary to the performance of their job responsibilities. Employees will not be reimbursed for commute mileage.
  - 1. **Mileage claims** for each preceding recording period are to be forwarded to the program director or designee by the 5<sup>th</sup> day of the following month. Forms are available at the Agency office for reporting mileage.

- 2. **The rate of reimbursement for mileage** shall be at a flat rate equal to the maximum allowed per the IRS code act effective upon the same date as effected by the IRS.
- 3. **Calculation of reimbursable mileage** amounts shall be based upon approved business mileage. Business mileage is defined as miles driven between one business location and another business location.
- 4. **Commute miles** are miles between home and the otherwise scheduled first work stop of the day and between home and the otherwise scheduled last work stop of the day.
- 5. **In the case of conferences** or other temporary work assignments where the employee starts and/or ends the travel at their home, the claim for mileage should be based on the shorter of the distance from home to the event/temporary work assignment or from CCRESA to the event/temporary work assignment. A temporary work assignment is defined as an assignment that is irregular and realistically expected to last less than a school year.
- 6. **The immediate supervisor** shall maintain the right to approve the employee's scheduling.
- 7. **Transportation of others:** If an employee shall be required to transport others in their personal vehicle or an employee volunteers to transport others in their personal vehicle while performing work activities, the employee shall be covered by the district's automobile insurance on an excess basis.

#### J. Severance

Each employee who has worked for the CCRESA for at least fifteen (15) years in a state approved, licensed and/or certified capacity shall be eligible to receive a severance benefit as follows:

- 1. If the eligible employee provides written notice of severance by April 15th prior to the end of the then current school year of severance or has been notified of severance by the District due to discontinuation of position or program, and
- 2. If the eligible employee submits his/her written resignation to be effective at the conclusion of that school year, then he/she shall be paid:
  - a. 15 through 20 years of service \$50 per accumulated sick day at end of school year.
  - b. 21 through 26 years of service \$55 per accumulated sick day at end of school year.

- c. 27-years and over \$60 per accumulated sick day at end of school year.
- 3. Maximum severance benefit to be paid cannot exceed six thousand seven hundred twenty dollars (\$6,720).

## ARTICLE XVIII - SUBCONTRACTING

The Agency may subcontract the duties of bargaining unit employees whenever there is a need to reduce a backlog of referrals within mandated time limits or there is an insufficient number of qualified professionals on staff to perform those duties. Such subcontracting may occur even though regular staff are on layoff, particularly if such backlogs would not be eliminated in a timely manner by recall of laid off staff member. However, in the event the Agency determined that there is a need to employ a qualified specialist at least 1/2 time for a specific period of ninety (90) consecutive days of work, the Agency shall first offer such a position to qualified and eligible laid-off specialists in accordance with Article XIV, Section C of the Agreement. The provision of Article XIV, Paragraph B shall not apply to specialists who are recalled pursuant to Article XVIII and later laid-off. Laid-off specialists shall be eligible for subcontracts provided they give notice of their availability to the Superintendent or his designee. A specialist shall have one (1) day to respond to any such offer.

- 1. Prior to any subcontracting of therapy or evaluation services, the Agency shall notify the Association at least (1) working day in advance of its intent to do so. Included in this notice shall be:
  - a. The required services;
  - b. The date of referral for CCRESA services, if applicable; and
  - c. The agency (ies) or person(s) expected to provide the service(s).
- 2. If the RESA subcontracts therapy or evaluation services, and there are available laid-off specialists who are qualified to perform these services, the RESA shall offer said specialists the subcontract prior to subcontracting with any other person or organization. The rate of payment for services subcontracted to specialists while they are laid off shall be at the specialist's per diem rate, unless the Board has been able to secure outside services for less.
- 3. Nothing herein shall limit the Agency's right to subcontract outside of the bargaining unit for in-service training and consultation with the administration and staff of the Agency, or if such services are recommended for a student by an IEPT.

- 4. Subcontracts for psychological evaluation or re-evaluation which are scheduled by the District to be performed during the summer break for the 2016-2017 school year shall be offered as follows:
  - a. Employees who would normally be assigned said evaluations during the regular school year shall be given first opportunity to receive said subcontract provided they inform this Agency of their availability by the last work day of the regular school year.
  - b. Qualified employees who by the last work day of the regular school year indicate their availability to perform such services shall then be given the opportunity to receive said contract in order of seniority.
  - c. The Agency may then subcontract the services pursuant to the provisions of Section 2, above.

Employees receiving a subcontract as provided above shall be paid at the same rate as would be offered an outside subcontractor for the same work or their per diem rate, whichever is less. The Association shall be notified of any such work subcontracted.

5. In addition to the subcontracting referred to above, the agency shall have the right, without restriction, to subcontract for career and vocational/technical education services. An example of the type of subcontract contemplated for career and vocational/technical education would be a contract between the agency and another educational institution, such as Lansing Community College, pursuant to which the other educational institution provides the needed educational services.

## **ARTICLE XIX – DURATION**

All articles of this Agreement shall be effective upon ratification and signature by both parties from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020. This agreement shall terminate on July 1, 2020. Either party may initiate negotiations for a successor Agreement by giving written notice to the other party on or after March 1, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representative the day and year written above.

BY _	Michael J. & Bryant	7-10-2017
	PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD	DATE
AND_	Ken Kjoll	7-10-2017
	TRUSTEE OF THE BOARD	DATE
AND_	By Mi Dy	7-10-2017
	TRUSTEE OF THE BOARD	DATE
AND_	Warne 6 Itunelia	6.28.17
	SUPER INTENDENT    ✓	DATE
AND_	English a. Fox	_6/26/17
	PRESIDENT OF THE ASSOCIATION	DATE
AND_	Jan Braw-teremi	6-28-17
	TEAM MEMBER OF THE ASSOCIATION	DATE

#### APPENDIX A - INSURANCE PROTECTION

- A. Effective July 1, 2015 the Board shall fully comply with state statutes that require employees to contribute toward their health insurance. Annually the board shall solely determine their intent to exercise the hard cap.
  - The amounts for which the employee is responsible shall be paid by deduction from the employee's salary monthly or through the execution of a salary reduction agreement and paid through the flexible benefits plan.
- B. Every eligible employee may elect either Plan I (full) or Plan II (vision/dental), but not both. Part-time employees employed effective June 19, 2000 shall continue to receive the level of benefits in effect for them at the time of this Agreement. All part-time employees hired after the aforementioned date shall receive the Board's contribution toward insurance coverage(s) (Plan I, Plan II) on a prorated basis according to the number of full days worked as a percentage of the established school year at the center, or at their assigned school district, if applicable. (Example: Two days worked at 3.25 hours per day equals one full day) Such coverage will be granted provided employees are working at least one half (1/2) time.
- C. Employees working less than half time may elect to be insured through the health insurance plan(s) offered by the Board. The employees will be responsible for the full cost of the health insurance plan offered and selected.
- D. The Board is not responsible for benefits available under said insurance coverage for any period when a specialist is not covered by the carrier.
- E. Employees who have Board provided term life insurance have a thirty-one (31) day conversion right upon termination of employment. Any employee electing his/her right of conversion in order to keep their life insurance in force must contact the insurance carrier within thirty-one (31) days of their last day of employment.
- F. An employee who terminates employment and leaves the school system for reasons other than illness or injury during the school year shall have their benefits terminated on the last day of the month following termination of their employment.
- G. When necessary, (and if permitted by the carrier) premiums on behalf of the employee shall be made retroactively or prospectively to assure uninterrupted participation and coverage.

#### PLAN I

# Clinton County Regional Educational Service Agency Employment Insurance Benefits 2017-2018

#### **Dental Insurance:**

SET Self-Funded Dental Plan – This plan will pay the reasonable and customary amount to the dentist for eligible services. The plan includes an incentive plan on preventative services. ADN is the administrator of this program.

#### Vision Insurance:

SET Self-Funded Vision Plan 3 – An allowance for examinations, frames, and one set of corrective lenses (regular glasses, prescription sunglasses, photochromic lenses or contact lenses) will be provided once in a 12-month period (defined as January 1 to December 31). ADN is the administrator of this program.

#### Medical Insurance:

CCRESA offers employees a choice from four Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan plans through the West Michigan Health Insurance Pool. Employees are responsible for a

portion of their premium.

	Option 1 SB 100% PPO	Option 2 SB 90% PPO	Option 3 Flexible Blue 2	Option 4 Flexible Blue 3
In Network: Deductible	None	\$250 per member \$500 per family	\$1,300 per member \$2,600 per family	\$2,000 per member \$4,000 per family
In Network: Coinsurance	0%	10% up to a maximum of \$1,000 per member/\$2,000 per family	0%	0%
Out of Network: Deductible	\$250 per member \$500 per family	\$500 per member \$1,000 per family	\$2,500 per member \$5,000 per family	\$4,000 per member \$8,000 per family
Out of Network: Coinsurance	20%	30%	20%	20%

Health insurance information for 2017-18: Blue Cross is available for eligible employees. See a representative of the CCRESA Business Office for complete details.

	Annual Caps	Plan 1	Plan 2	Plan 3	Plan 4 Monthly
		MonthlyEmployee	MonthlyEmployee	MonthlyEmployee	Employee Cost
		Cost (zero	Cost (\$250/\$500	Cost (High	(High
		deductible/no	deductible/90%	deductible	deductible
		coinsurance)	coinsurance)	\$1300/\$2600)	\$2,000/\$4,000)
Single	\$ 6,344.80	\$163.75	\$76.87\$	\$35.59	\$4.47
Two Person	\$13,268.93	\$452.34	\$236.85	\$163.97	\$93.94
Full Family	\$17,304.02	\$496.95	\$253.67	\$138.09	\$50.95

#### Long Term Disability:

Reliance Standard Life insurance Company (through SET SEG) – After elimination period, the monthly benefit is an amount equal to 60% of covered monthly earnings with a minimum monthly benefit of \$100 and a maximum monthly benefit of \$3,000.

Please refer to the Employer Sponsored Health Care Plans section of the transparency reporting pages on the CCRESA web site or see the Human Resource Specialist for further details.

## **PLAN II**

An employee who is eligible and who does not elect health insurance coverage under Plan I, will be provided the following coverage and benefits for a full twelve-month period, provided he/she completes his/her contractual obligation:

- 1. Dental 100/100/100 \$1500 80/80/80 - \$1,500 - New Hires
- 2. SET SEG Vision Plan 3
- 3. L.T.D. Same as above
- 4. Negotiated Life SET SEG \$20,000 with AD & D

For those employees who are eligible but do not elect health insurance coverage under Plan I, and elect Plan II, in addition to those benefits provided under Plan II, the Board will remit payments of five hundred dollars (\$500) per month as cash in lieu of health benefits.

# APPENDIX B - SALARY SCHEDULES

		Clinton	County Regional Ed Teacher Salar 2017-2	y Schedule	ce Agency			
STEP	1	ASD	Career/Tech Ed.	BA	BA+20	MA	MA+15	MA+3
O1L1	ON	\$34,345	\$34,334	\$40,393	\$42,164	\$43,934	\$46,024	\$48,1
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
1.0			·		<u> </u>		\$46,024	
1.0	TOTAL	\$34,345	\$34,334	\$40,393	\$42,164	\$43,934		\$48,11
	ON		\$34,911	\$41,072	\$42,834	\$44,774	\$46,854	\$48,93
4.5	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
1.5	TOTAL		\$34,911	\$41,072	\$42,834	\$44,774	\$46,854	\$48,93
	ON	\$35,678	\$35,836	\$42,160	\$43,934	\$46,061	\$48,150	\$50,24
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
2.0	TOTAL	\$35,678	\$35,836	\$42,160	\$43,934	\$46,061	\$48,150	\$50,24
	ON		\$36,590	\$43,047	\$44,998	\$47,363	\$49,452	\$51,5
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
2.5	TOTAL		\$36,590	\$43,047	\$44,998	\$47,363	\$49,452	\$51,54
	ON	\$37,011	\$37,345	\$43,934	\$46,061	\$48,665	\$50,756	\$52,84
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
3.0	TOTAL	\$37,011	\$37,345	\$43,934	\$46,061	\$48,665	\$50,756	\$52,84
	ON		\$38,099	\$44,822	\$46,945	\$49,666	\$51,756	\$53,84
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
3.5	TOTAL		\$38,099	\$44,822	\$46,945	\$49,666	\$51,756	\$53,84
5.5	ON	\$38,344	\$38,850	\$45,708	\$47,832	\$50,665	\$52,756	\$54,84
	OFF		\$30,030	\$45,706	\$0	\$0,005	\$0	\$04,62
4.0		\$0						
4.0	TOTAL	\$38,344	\$38,850	\$45,708	\$47,832	\$50,665	\$52,756	\$54,84
	ON		\$39,601	\$46,592	\$48,895	\$51,732	\$53,822	\$55,9
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
4.5	TOTAL		\$39,601	\$46,592	\$48,895	\$51,732	\$53,822	\$55,9°
	ON	\$39,676	\$40,356	\$47,479	\$49,957	\$52,795	\$54,884	\$56,97
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
5.0	TOTAL	\$39,676	\$40,356	\$47,479	\$49,957	\$52,795	\$54,884	\$56,97
	ON		\$41,258	\$48,540	\$50,844	\$54,033	\$56,123	\$58,2°
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
5.5	TOTAL		\$41,258	\$48,540	\$50,844	\$54,033	\$56,123	\$58,2
	ON	\$41,213	\$42,161	\$49,601	\$51,731	\$55,272	\$57,363	\$59,45
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
6.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$42,161	\$49,601	\$51,731	\$55,272	\$57,363	\$59,45
0.0	ON	φ <del>4</del> 1,213	\$43,066		· ·	\$56,515		
				\$50,664	\$52,969		\$58,604	\$60,69
0.5	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
6.5	TOTAL		\$43,066	\$50,664	\$52,969	\$56,515	\$58,604	\$60,69
	ON	\$41,213	\$43,970	\$51,731	\$54,205	\$57,756	\$59,845	\$61,93
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
7.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$43,970	\$51,731	\$54,205	\$57,756	\$59,845	\$61,93
	ON		\$44,572	\$52,437	\$55,272	\$58,993	\$61,084	\$63,17
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
7.5	TOTAL		\$44,572	\$52,437	\$55,272	\$58,993	\$61,084	\$63,17
	ON	\$41,213	\$45,175	\$53,145	\$56,336	\$60,230	\$62,319	\$64,4
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
8.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$45,175	\$53,145	\$56,336	\$60,230	\$62,319	\$64,4°
	ON		\$46,079	\$54,208	\$57,396	\$61,293	\$63,385	\$65,47
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
8.5	TOTAL		\$46,079	\$54,208	\$57,396	\$61,293	\$63,385	\$65,47
	ON	\$41,213	\$46,981	\$55,275	\$58,462	\$62,360	\$64,451	\$66,54
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$00,3
9.0				_				
9.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$46,981	\$55,275	\$58,462	\$62,360	\$64,451	\$66,5
	ON		\$47,596	\$55,995	\$59,184	\$63,081	\$65,171	\$67,20
0.5	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
9.5	TOTAL		\$47,596	\$55,995	\$59,184	\$63,081	\$65,171	\$67,20
	ON	\$41,213	\$48,210	\$56,718	\$59,906	\$63,802	\$65,892	\$67,98
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
10.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$48,210	\$56,718	\$59,906	\$63,802	\$65,892	\$67,98
·	ON		\$49,780	\$58,566	\$61,817	\$65,793	\$67,884	\$69,97
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
10.5	TOTAL		\$49,780	\$58,566	\$61,817	\$65,793	\$67,884	\$69,9
	ON	\$41,213	\$51,350	\$60,414	\$63,729	\$67,784	\$69,873	\$71,96
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
11.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$51,350	\$60,414	\$63,729	\$67,784	\$69,873	\$71,96
11.0		ψ-1,213						
	ON		\$52,379	\$61,622	\$65,005	\$69,139	\$71,271	\$73,40
	OFF		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
11.5	TOTAL		\$52,379	\$61,622	\$65,005	\$69,139	\$71,271	\$73,40
	ON	\$41,213	\$53,405	\$62,831	\$66,279	\$70,495	\$72,666	\$74,84
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
12.0	TOTAL	\$41,213	\$53,405	\$62,831	\$66,279	\$70,495	\$72,666	\$74,84
	ON	\$41,213	\$54,202	\$63,768	\$67,267	\$71,547	\$73,753	\$75,95
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
12.0+	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$41,213</b>	\$0 <b>\$54,202</b>	\$0 <b>\$63,768</b>	\$0 <b>\$67,267</b>	\$0 <b>\$71,547</b>	\$0 <b>\$73,753</b>	\$75,95

STEP	Clinton County Regional Educational Service Agency								
ON   \$34,500   \$34,517   \$40,595   \$42,775   \$44,154   \$46,224   \$48,356   \$10, OFF   \$0   \$0   \$50				eacher Salary	Schedule				
OFF   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0	STEP								
1.0						1 1			,
ON \$35,086	1.0		·						
1.5				, , ,		\$43,048			\$49,177
ON \$3-0,015 \$35,556 \$42,371 \$44,154 \$46,291 \$48,391 \$50,402 OFF \$0 OFF \$0 S1,505 \$42,371 \$44,154 \$46,291 \$48,391 \$50,402 OFF \$0			·						-
OFF   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0	1.5			<b>*</b> 05.050					. ,
2.0			*****						
ON \$30,6773   \$43,202 \$45,223 \$47,600 \$49,699 \$51,802   \$0.00 \$0.0	2.0		·	-					-
2.5   TOTAL   \$36,773   \$43,262   \$45,223   \$47,600   \$49,699   \$51,802   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0		ON	·	, ,					
ON \$37,532 \$37,199 \$44,154 \$46,291 \$46,908 \$51,101 \$53,110 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  ON \$330,299 \$44,154 \$46,221 \$46,908 \$51,101 \$53,110 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  3.5 \$107TAL \$332,299 \$46,046 \$47,100 \$49,914 \$52,015 \$54,116 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0			·						-
OFF   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0	2.5		_	007.400				_	-
3.0 TOTAL S37,532 \$37,196 \$44,154 \$46,291 \$48,908 \$51,010 \$33,120 \$0 FF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0									
ON \$33,289	3.0			-					-
3.5. TOTAL			_	,,,,,,					. ,
ON		OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
OFF   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0	3.5	_	_			. ,			
4.0				,			,		
ON \$39.799	4.0				·		·		-
OFF	7.0		* / -	<b>\$00,000</b>		1		,	
ON \$40,558 \$39,874 \$47,716 \$50,207 \$53,059 \$55,188 \$57,259 \$55.0 FF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0			****, ***		+ -,				,
OFF   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0	4.5							. ,	
Solid   Soli									
ON \$41,464   \$44,783   \$51,098   \$54,303   \$56,404   \$58,503   OFF   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0   \$0	5.0		* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *			-		* -	-
OFF   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0	5.0			\$39,674					,
Section   Sect									
OFF   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0   S0	5.5	TOTAL							
6.0									
ON \$43,281 \$50,917 \$53,234 \$56,798 \$58,897 \$60,997  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$50,850,997  ON \$44,190 \$41,419 \$51,990 \$54,476 \$58,045 \$60,144 \$62,246  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  7.0 TOTAL \$44,190 \$41,419 \$51,990 \$54,476 \$58,045 \$60,144 \$62,246  ON \$44,795 \$52,699 \$55,548 \$59,288 \$61,389 \$63,489  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  7.5 TOTAL \$44,190 \$41,419 \$51,990 \$54,476 \$58,045 \$60,144 \$62,246  ON \$44,795 \$52,699 \$55,548 \$59,288 \$61,389 \$63,488  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  7.5 TOTAL \$44,795 \$52,699 \$55,548 \$59,288 \$61,389 \$63,488  ON \$44,4795 \$52,699 \$55,548 \$60,531 \$62,631 \$64,733  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  7.5 TOTAL \$44,795 \$52,699 \$55,548 \$60,531 \$62,631 \$64,733  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  8.0 TOTAL \$45,401 \$41,419 \$53,411 \$56,618 \$60,531 \$62,631 \$64,733  ON \$46,309 \$54,479 \$53,641 \$66,618 \$60,531 \$62,631 \$64,733  ON \$46,309 \$54,479 \$57,683 \$61,599 \$63,702 \$65,803  ON \$46,309 \$54,479 \$57,683 \$61,599 \$63,702 \$66,803  ON \$47,216 \$41,419 \$55,551 \$58,754 \$62,672 \$64,773 \$66,874  ON \$47,834 \$56,275 \$59,480 \$63,396 \$65,497 \$67,598  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  9.5 TOTAL \$43,834 \$56,275 \$59,480 \$63,396 \$66,497 \$67,598  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  9.5 TOTAL \$44,8451 \$41,419 \$57,002 \$60,206 \$64,121 \$66,221 \$68,323  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  10.0 TOTAL \$44,8451 \$41,419 \$57,002 \$60,206 \$64,121 \$66,221 \$68,323  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  10.0 TOTAL \$50,029 \$58,859 \$62,126 \$66,122 \$68,223 \$70,323  ON \$50,029 \$58,859 \$62,126 \$66,122 \$68,223 \$70,323  ON \$51,607 \$41,419 \$60,716 \$64,048 \$68,123 \$70,222 \$72,322  ON \$51,607 \$41,419 \$60,716 \$64,048 \$68,123 \$70,222 \$72,322  OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0  11.0 TOTAL \$51,607 \$41,419 \$60,407 \$66,610 \$70,407 \$73,029 \$75,215  ON \$53,672 \$41,419 \$60,407 \$66,610 \$70,407 \$73,029 \$75,215  ON \$53,672 \$41,419 \$60,407 \$67,603 \$71,905 \$77,722 \$73,586  ON \$53,673 \$41,419 \$60,407 \$67,603 \$71,905 \$77,722 \$73,			·	-					-
OFF   S0	6.0			\$41,419				_	
6.5 TOTAL \$43,281 \$50,917 \$53,234 \$56,798 \$58,897 \$60,997 ON \$44,190 \$41,419 \$51,990 \$54,476 \$58,045 \$60,144 \$62,246 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0									
OFF	6.5		·						-
7.0 TOTAL \$44,190 \$41,419 \$51,990 \$54,476 \$58,045 \$60,144 \$62,246 ON \$447,795 \$52,699 \$55,548 \$59,288 \$61,389 \$63,488 \$0.0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0		ON	\$44,190	\$41,419	\$51,990	\$54,476	\$58,045	\$60,144	\$62,246
ON         \$44,795         \$52,699         \$55,548         \$59,288         \$61,389         \$63,488           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$50,488         \$61,389         \$62,488         \$61,389         \$62,488         \$61,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$62,631         \$64,733         \$64,733         \$66,803         \$60         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0			·						-
OFF	7.0			\$41,419					. ,
7.5 TOTAL \$44,795			. ,		* - ,	*,-			
ON	7.5		·						-
8.0 TOTAL \$45,401 \$41,419 \$53,411 \$56,618 \$60,531 \$62,631 \$64,733 ON \$46,309 \$54,479 \$57,683 \$61,599 \$63,702 \$65,803 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0				\$41,419					\$64,733
ON         \$46,309         \$54,479         \$57,683         \$61,599         \$63,702         \$65,803           OFF         \$0			·						
OFF	8.0			\$41,419					
8.5 TOTAL \$46,309 \$54,479 \$57,683 \$61,599 \$63,702 \$65,803 ON \$47,216 \$41,419 \$55,551 \$58,754 \$62,672 \$64,773 \$66,874 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0									
ON         \$47,216         \$41,419         \$55,551         \$58,754         \$62,672         \$64,773         \$66,874           OFF         \$0	8.5								
9.0         TOTAL         \$47,216         \$41,419         \$55,551         \$58,754         \$62,672         \$64,773         \$66,874           ON         \$47,834         \$56,275         \$59,480         \$63,396         \$65,497         \$67,598           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           9.5         TOTAL         \$47,834         \$56,275         \$59,480         \$63,396         \$65,497         \$67,598           ON         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.0         TOTAL         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           OFF         \$0				\$41,419				_	
ON         \$47,834         \$56,275         \$59,480         \$63,396         \$67,598           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           9.5         TOTAL         \$47,834         \$56,275         \$59,480         \$63,396         \$65,497         \$67,598           ON         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.0         TOTAL         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           ON         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.5         TOTAL         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0									
OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           9.5         TOTAL         \$47,834         \$56,275         \$59,480         \$63,396         \$65,497         \$67,598           ON         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.0         TOTAL         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           ON         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.5         TOTAL         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0	9.0			\$41,419					
9.5 TOTAL \$47,834 \$56,275 \$59,480 \$63,396 \$65,497 \$67,598 ON \$48,451 \$41,419 \$57,002 \$60,206 \$64,121 \$66,221 \$68,323 OFF \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0									
ON         \$48,451         \$41,419         \$57,002         \$60,206         \$64,121         \$66,221         \$68,323           OFF         \$0	9.5		·						
OFF         \$0				\$41,419					
ON         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.5         TOTAL         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           ON         \$51,607         \$41,419         \$60,716         \$64,048         \$68,123         \$70,222         \$72,322           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           11.0         TOTAL         \$51,607         \$41,419         \$60,716         \$64,048         \$68,123         \$70,222         \$72,322           ON         \$52,641         \$61,930         \$65,330         \$69,485         \$71,627         \$73,768           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           11.5         TOTAL         \$52,641         \$61,930         \$65,330         \$69,485         \$71,627         \$73,768           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           11.5		OFF			\$0				
OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           10.5         TOTAL         \$50,029         \$58,859         \$62,126         \$66,122         \$68,223         \$70,323           ON         \$51,607         \$41,419         \$60,716         \$64,048         \$68,123         \$70,222         \$72,322           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           11.0         TOTAL         \$51,607         \$41,419         \$60,716         \$64,048         \$68,123         \$70,222         \$72,322           ON         \$52,641         \$61,930         \$65,330         \$69,485         \$71,627         \$73,768           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           11.5         TOTAL         \$52,641         \$61,930         \$65,330         \$69,485         \$71,627         \$73,768           ON         \$53,672         \$41,419         \$63,145         \$66,610         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           12.0         <	10.0			\$41,419				_	
10.5									
ON         \$51,607         \$41,419         \$60,716         \$64,048         \$68,123         \$70,222         \$72,322           OFF         \$0	10.5								
OFF         \$0	10.0			\$41,419					
ON         \$52,641         \$61,930         \$65,330         \$69,485         \$71,627         \$73,768           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           11.5         TOTAL         \$52,641         \$61,930         \$65,330         \$69,485         \$71,627         \$73,768           ON         \$53,672         \$41,419         \$63,145         \$66,610         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           12.0         TOTAL         \$53,672         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$66,610         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215           ON         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           12.0+         TOTAL         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337           12.0+         TOTAL         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603<									
OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$1,627         \$73,768         \$73,768         \$1,627         \$73,768         \$1,627         \$73,768         \$1,627         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$1,627         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$1,627         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$1,027         \$1,027         \$1,027         \$1,027         \$1,029         \$75,215         \$1,027         \$1,029         \$1,029         \$1,021         \$1,029 <t< td=""><td colspan="2">11.0 TOT</td><td></td><td>\$41,419</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>_</td><td></td></t<>	11.0 TOT			\$41,419				_	
11.5						1			
ON         \$53,672         \$41,419         \$63,145         \$66,610         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215           OFF         \$0         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$75,215         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$75,215         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$76,215         \$76,217         \$76,217         \$76,217         \$76,217         \$76,217         \$76,217         \$76,337         \$71,203         \$75,505         \$77,722         \$79,937         \$75,215         \$77,722         \$79,937         \$72	44.5		·						
OFF         \$0         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$75,215         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215         \$75,215         \$74,122         \$76,337         \$76,337         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337         \$76,037         \$77,025         \$74,122         \$76,337         \$71,203         \$75,505         \$77,722         \$79,937         \$77,22         \$79,937           12+Long         \$58,073         \$45,019         \$67,687         \$71,203         \$75,505         \$77,722         \$79,937	T1.5			\$41.410					
12.0         TOTAL         \$53,672         \$41,419         \$63,145         \$66,610         \$70,847         \$73,029         \$75,215           ON         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337           OFF         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0         \$0           12.0+         TOTAL         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337           12+Long         \$58,073         \$45,019         \$67,687         \$71,203         \$75,505         \$77,722         \$79,937									
ON         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337           OFF         \$0	12.0								
12.0+         TOTAL         \$54,473         \$41,419         \$64,087         \$67,603         \$71,905         \$74,122         \$76,337           12+Long         \$58,073         \$45,019         \$67,687         \$71,203         \$75,505         \$77,722         \$79,937			\$54,473	\$41,419	\$64,087	\$67,603	\$71,905	\$74,122	\$76,337
12+Long \$58,073 \$45,019 \$67,687 \$71,203 \$75,505 \$77,722 \$79,937									
				\$45,019°	780,104	\$/1,203	<b>\$75,505</b>	\$11,122	\$79,937

Clinton County Regional Educational Service Agency Teacher Salary Schedule 2019-2020								
STEP		Career/Tech Ed.	ASD	ВА	BA+20	MA	MA+15	MA+30
	ON	\$34,679	\$34,690	\$40,798	\$42,587	\$44,375	\$46,485	\$48,598
1.0	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$34,679</b>	\$0 <b>\$34,690</b>	\$0 <b>\$40,798</b>	\$0 <b>\$42,587</b>	\$0 <b>\$44,375</b>	\$0 <b>\$46,485</b>	\$0 <b>\$48,598</b>
	ON	\$35,261	<b>40</b> 1,000	\$41,483	\$43,263	\$45,223	\$47,323	\$49,423
	OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
1.5	ON	<b>\$35,261</b> \$36,195	\$36,035	\$41,483 \$42.583	<b>\$43,263</b> \$44,375	<b>\$45,223</b> \$46,522	<b>\$47,323</b> \$48.633	<b>\$49,423</b> \$50,744
	OFF	\$30,193	\$30,033	\$42,363	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0,744
2.0	TOTAL	\$36,195	\$36,035	\$42,583	\$44,375	\$46,522	\$48,633	\$50,744
	ON	\$36,957		\$43,478	\$45,449	\$47,838	\$49,947	\$52,061
2.5	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$36,957</b>		\$0 <b>\$43,478</b>	\$0 <b>\$45,449</b>	\$0 <b>\$47,838</b>	\$0 <b>\$49,947</b>	\$0 <b>\$52,061</b>
2.3	ON	\$37,720	\$37,382	\$44,375	\$46,522	\$49,153	\$51,265	\$53,376
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
3.0	TOTAL	\$37,720	\$37,382	\$44,375	\$46,522	\$49,153	\$51,265	\$53,376
	ON OFF	\$38,480 \$0		\$45,271 \$0	\$47,416 \$0	\$50,164 \$0	\$52,275 \$0	\$54,387 \$0
3.5	TOTAL	\$38,480		\$45,271	\$47,416	\$50,164	\$52,275	\$54,387
	ON	\$39,239	\$38,729	\$46,167	\$48,311	\$51,173	\$53,285	\$55,396
4.0	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$39,239</b>	\$0 <b>\$38,729</b>	\$0 <b>\$46,167</b>	\$0 \$48.311	\$0 <b>\$51,173</b>	\$0 <b>\$53,285</b>	\$0 <b>\$55.396</b>
4.0	ON	\$39,239 \$39,998	\$30,129	\$46,167 \$47,059	\$48,311 \$49,385	\$51,173 \$52,251	\$53,285 \$54,361	\$55,396 \$56,471
	OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
4.5	TOTAL	\$39,998		\$47,059	\$49,385	\$52,251	\$54,361	\$56,471
	ON OFF	\$40,761 \$0	\$40,073 \$0	\$47,955 \$0	\$50,458 \$0	\$53,324 \$0	\$55,434 \$0	\$57,545 \$0
5.0	TOTAL	\$40,761	\$40,073	\$47,955	\$50,458	\$53,324	\$55,434	\$57,545
	ON	\$41,671	. ,	\$49,027	\$51,353	\$54,575	\$56,686	\$58,796
	OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
5.5	ON	<b>\$41,671</b> \$42,584	\$41,626	<b>\$49,027</b> \$50,098	<b>\$51,353</b> \$52,250	<b>\$54,575</b> \$55,826	<b>\$56,686</b> \$57,938	<b>\$58,796</b> \$60,046
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
6.0	TOTAL	\$42,584	\$41,626	\$50,098	\$52,250	\$55,826	\$57,938	\$60,046
	ON	\$43,497		\$51,172	\$53,500	\$57,082	\$59,191	\$61,302
6.5	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$43,497</b>		\$0 <b>\$51,172</b>	\$0 <b>\$53,500</b>	\$0 <b>\$57,082</b>	\$0 <b>\$59,191</b>	\$0 <b>\$61,302</b>
	ON	\$44,411	\$41,626	\$52,250	\$54,748	\$58,335	\$60,445	\$62,557
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
7.0	ON	<b>\$44,411</b> \$45,019	\$41,626	<b>\$52,250</b> \$52,962	<b>\$54,748</b> \$55,826	<b>\$58,335</b> \$59,584	<b>\$60,445</b> \$61,696	<b>\$62,557</b> \$63,805
	OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
7.5	TOTAL	\$45,019		\$52,962	\$55,826	\$59,584	\$61,696	\$63,805
	ON	\$45,628	\$41,626	\$53,678	\$56,901	\$60,834	\$62,944	\$65,057
8.0	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$45.628</b>	\$0 <b>\$41,626</b>	\$0 <b>\$53,678</b>	\$0 <b>\$56,901</b>	\$0 <b>\$60.834</b>	\$0 <b>\$62,944</b>	\$0 <b>\$65.057</b>
0.0	ON	\$46,541	<b>Q</b> +1,020	\$54,751	\$57,971	\$61,907	\$64,021	\$66,132
	OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
8.5	TOTAL	\$46,541	\$41,626	\$54,751	<b>\$57,971</b> \$59,048	\$61,907	\$64,021	\$66,132
	ON OFF	\$47,452 \$0	\$41,626	\$55,829 \$0	\$59,048	\$62,985 \$0	\$65,097 \$0	\$67,208 \$0
9.0	TOTAL	\$47,452	\$41,626	\$55,829	\$59,048	\$62,985	\$65,097	\$67,208
	ON	\$48,073		\$56,556	\$59,777	\$63,713	\$65,824	\$67,936
9.5	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$48,073</b>		\$0 <b>\$56,556</b>	\$0 <b>\$59,777</b>	\$0 <b>\$63,713</b>	\$0 <b>\$65,824</b>	\$0 <b>\$67,936</b>
3.3	ON	\$48,693	\$41,626	\$57,287	\$60,507	\$64,442	\$66,552	\$68,665
	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
10.0	TOTAL	\$48,693	\$41,626	\$57,287	\$60,507	\$64,442	\$66,552	\$68,665
	ON OFF	\$50,279 \$0		\$59,153 \$0	\$62,437 \$0	\$66,453 \$0	\$68,564 \$0	\$70,675 \$0
10.5	TOTAL	\$50,279		\$59,153	\$62,437	\$66,453	\$68,564	\$70,675
	ON	\$51,865	\$41,626	\$61,020	\$64,368	\$68,464	\$70,573	\$72,684
11.0	OFF TOTAL	\$0 <b>\$51,865</b>	\$0 <b>\$41,626</b>	\$0 <b>\$61,020</b>	\$0 <b>\$64,368</b>	\$0 <b>\$68,464</b>	\$0 \$70.573	\$0 <b>\$72,684</b>
11.0	ON	\$51,865 \$52,904	φ+1,020	\$62,240	\$64,368 \$65,657	\$68,464 \$69,832	<b>\$70,573</b> \$71,985	\$72,684 \$74,137
	OFF	\$0		\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
11.5	TOTAL	\$52,904		\$62,240	\$65,657	\$69,832	\$71,985	\$74,137
	ON OFF	\$53,940 \$0	\$41,626 \$0	\$63,461 \$0	\$66,943 \$0	\$71,201 \$0	\$73,394 \$0	\$75,591 \$0
12.0	TOTAL	\$0 \$53,940	\$0 \$41,626	\$63,461	\$66,943	\$0 \$71,201	\$0 \$73,394	\$0 \$75,591
	ON	\$54,745	\$41,626	\$64,407	\$67,941	\$72,265	\$74,493	\$76,719
40.0	OFF	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
12.0+ 12+Long	TOTAL	\$54,745 \$58,445	\$41,626 \$45,326	\$64,407 \$68,107	\$67,941 \$71,641	\$72,265 \$75,965	\$74,493 \$78,193	\$76,719 \$80,419
Longevity Val	ue	3,700.00	ψ10,020	ψου, τον	ψ11,0 <del>1</del> 1	ψ1 0,303	ψ10,100	<b>400,410</b>

# APPENDIX C - MENTOR/MENTEE

Teachers may serve, on a voluntary basis and with administrative approval, as mentors for teachers in their first three (3) years of employment on an improvement plan, as is required by section 1526 of the Revised School Code. The purpose of the mentormentee relationship is to provide new teachers with support and assistance in the introduction to their profession. For each mentee assigned, the mentor shall be compensated \$300 per school year.

Specialists may serve, on a voluntary basis and with administrative approval, as mentors for specialists in their first one (1) year of employment on an improvement plan. The purpose of the mentor-mentee relationship is to provide new specialists with support and assistance in the introduction to their profession. For each mentee assigned, the mentor shall be compensated \$300 per school year.

#### APPENDIX D - Calendar

Deviations from the calendar schedule are at the discretion of the Superintendent; however, shall comply with the State School Aid Act and Revised School Code. In the event that an employee meets any portion of this obligation prior to the beginning of the school year and subsequently severs employment (for any reason) prior to the beginning of the next school year, the school district will not be financially liable.

During the 2016-17 School Year, an ad-hoc committee of CCRESA employees (administrators, teachers, specialists, others as needed) will meet to provide plans to implement the Balanced Calendar for 12 month programs (*Early On*, ECSE, Education Center) to be implemented for CCRESA in the 2017-18 School Year.

Implementing the Balanced Calendar for the 2017-18 School Year, may result in updating/adjusting other language in this Agreement. The Sole Purpose for any language updating/adjusting will be for the implementation of the Balanced Calendar and in doing so, both the Association and the Board will provide input for this Sole Purpose.

# **APPENDIX E - GRIEVANCE FORM**

	Grievance Number
	Date of Violation
School	
STATEMENT OF GRIEVANCE: (Attached)	
REMEDY REQUESTED: (Attached) Approved for processing:	
Signature of EA Representative	Signature of Grievant (use reverse side for additional signatures if more than one (Grievant)
Date:	(GIIOVAIII)
DIRECTOR'S DISPOSITION: (Attached)	
Date Received:	
Date of Action:	Signature of Director
ASSOCIATION'S RESPONSE:	
Satisfactory	Unsatisfactory
Date:	(Reasons Attached)
SUPERINTENDENT'S DISPOSITION: (At	tached)
SUPERINTENDENT S DISPOSITION: (AU	tached
Date Received:	
Date of Action:	Signature of Superintendent
ASSOCIATION'S RESPONSE:	
Satisfactory	Unsatisfactory
Data	(Reasons Attached)
Date:	
BOARD'S DISPOSITION: (Attached)	
Date Received:	
Date of Action	Signature of Board President
ASSOCIATION'S RESPONSE:	
Satisfactory	Unsatisfactory
	(Reasons Attached)
Date:	Arbitration Indicated